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GTL RESOURCES PLC ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Revenue increased 21% to $261 4 million (Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2010 $216 6 million)
e Average commodity margin decreased 6% to $0 58/gallon (FY 2010 $0 62/gallon)
 EBITDA 10% lower at $30 4 million (FY 2010 EBITDA $33 9 million)

¢ Pre-tax profit of $12 0 million (FY 2010 $14 5 million)

+ Net debt balance of $83 4 million at 31 March 2011 reflects a reduction of $14 4 million
during the period (31 March 2010 $97 8 million)
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Sold 1104 million gallons of ethanol dunng the penod (7 2% increase over FY 2010
103 million gallons) Running production at 110 — 115 million gallons per annum (mgpa)

e Shipped 297,000 tons of dnied distillers’ grains with solubles ("DDGS”) dunng the pernod
(5% Increase over FY 2010 283,000 tons)

» Continued positive ethano! yield and natural gas usage trends

¢ Received final rembursement for property damage and lost profits relating to the insurance
claim from the October 2009 fire incident Settled claim in full

» Successfully ran food grade zein protein samples from GTL's new pilot facility in Rochelle, IL
Executed a collaboration agreement with our development partner, Praine Gold, Inc

» Began construction of a steam turbine that will generate roughly 25% of llinois River
Energy’s (“IRE”) electricity needs and reduce annual operating costs at IRE

e Constructed a new corn processing and storage area at IRE consisting of a stand-alone corn
milling facility and a 330,000 bushel steel corn storage bin that was completed in May of 2011
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

t am pleased to report GTL Resources PLC's
(“*GTL") results for the year ended 31 March 2011
The Group made pretax proiits of $120 million
This was achieved on a 21% increase In revenue to
$261 4 milion (FY 2010 $216 6 million) Basic earmings
per share were $0 19 (FY 2010 $0 40) after recording
a FY 2011 non-cash income tax provision of $4 1 million
vs an income tax benefit of $02 million n FY 2010
Importantly, interest-beanng debt was teduced by
$20 million durning the year ended 31 March 2011

These financial results were achieved dunng some
difficult market conditions Dunng several months of
our financial year, market margins were very weak
and sometimes negative Aganst that backdrop, our
team consistently delivered better margins than were
generally avaldable in the market This emphasises
the strength of our team and the locational advantages
of our plant

The performance for the Group was helped by
increased production and efficcencies at IRE,
the Group's ethanol plant in Rochelle, llinos, but
hindered by a lower commodity margin environment
Commodity margins of $0 58/gallon in FY 2011 were
down when compared with $0 62/gallon the previous
year The average selling price of ethanol in FY 2011
of $1 97/gallon was higher than the FY 2010 average
of $1 71/gallon, but the sncrease was more than
offset by the increase in the average cost of com In
FY 2011 of $4 61/bushel vs the average FY 2010
costof $365bushel Commodity margins were
affected by a lower than expected com harvest, feed
gran crop falures outside the US, weaker demand
brought about by lower gasoline {petrol) consumption
and slowing ethanol penetration mnto the gasoline
pool as penetration {evels approached the ten percent
“blend wall”

On 14 October 2010 and on 21 January 2011, the
US Environmental  Protection Agency ("USEPA®)
ruled t would permit gasolne blends with up to
15 percent ethanol ("E15") for model year 2001 and
newer vehicles, a 50% Increase from the previous
imit of 10 percent and the first key step in lifting the
blend wall These model year vehicles represent
approximately two-thirds of US gasoline demand
The impact of this development bodes well for future
years after retallers make the infrastructure changes
necessary to sell E15 and bft the blend wall
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Operatonal performance at IRE continues to be
excellent The IRE team averaged a run rate of
111 mgpa of denatured ethanol produced, which 1s
a significant improvement over prior year's production
of 102 mgpa This strong performance was achteved
inlarge part from IRE's conthued commitment to
process improvement projects that were successfully
implemented throughout the year

GTL s focused on becoming a premier bio-retining
company To that end, GTL ts continually seeking to
develop and commercialize new technologies that
Increase revenues and enhance margins, both
directly and in collaboration with technology partners
Currently, construction 1s underway on a steam turbine
generator that will supply 25% of the electncity needed
to run the [IRE plant in Rochelle, llinois by using excess
mechanical energy In steam the plant already produces
In addion, GTL s contnuing its partnership with
Praine Gold, Inc to commercialise patented technology
to extract a high value protein by-product from com
The partnership's pttet plant operations, on-site In
Rochelle, are entenng a second year of operation
GTL management believes projects to improve plant
effciencies and create additronal high-value products,
will transform the GTL asset base into the premier
bio-refining asset base in the industry To this end,
the Group will continue to seek out new partners,
work with existing partners, and selechvely invest n
the development of new wviable technologes aimed
at diversifying and enhancing profitability These
investments are cntical to the future success of
GTL and will atlow GTL to achieve its vision

The GTL and IRE teams are the backbone of this
organisation and these results could not have been
achieved without each and every one of them
The Board would ke to thank all our team members
{or their continued support and hard work in achieving
these fine results

//2&. Lo A

JULIA HENDERSON
Non-Executive Chairman
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW

IRE sold 110 mtlion gallons of denatured ethanob in
FY 2011 versus prior period sales of 103 million gallons
and nameplate capacity of 97 million gallons Plant
operational efficiencies also improved IRE's denatured
ethanol yield per bushel of corn was 2 82 gallons
versus 2 80 gallons in the prior period Natural gas
usage decreased in FY 2011 to 28,360 Biu's per
denatured gallon from 29,384 Btu's per denatured
gallon n FY 2010 These improvements resulted from
management's continuous improvement program
focused on constraint elevation, waste elimiation,
and up time

In early 2009, temporary repars were made to the
damaged concrete silo structure at IRE to ensure
continued safe operation of corn storage and milling
Nevertheless, since retained experts at IRE advised
that the structural integnty of the silo structure
was permanently compromised, and given that the
ihigation’s slow pace was increasing the nsk that
the temporary reparrs may fal, IRE management
determined that it would be prudent to advance the
construction of a replacement corn storage and milling
system The new storage and miling faciities, which
include a standalone corn miling bulding and a
330,000 bushel corn storage bin, mitigate the nisk
of farlure and downtime by providing corn processing
capability that can function independently from the
damaged faciittes The project was completed and
operational as of May 2011 The project cost of
$5 4 milion was funded by IRE's existing restricted
cash reserves, set aside specifically for this important
nsk mitigation Management believes, however, that
property damage alone 1s substantially higher than the
cost of this partial solukton Complete recovery of all
damages from the defendants in the lhgation s
being pursued

IRE COMMERCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the penicd, IRE's commodity margin on sales of
$0 58/gallon was $0 04/gallon lower than the prior year,
but $0 06/gallon higher than IRE's local market
The commodity margin, defined as the net ethanol and
DDGS price realization less the net corn and natural
gas consumption costs, 15 IRE's key measure of
commercial performance

IRE’s commodity margin outperformance versus market
was mainly due to our commercial team’s performance
in seling ethanol and buying corn and natural gas on
adaly basis, and to slightly higher DDGS net price
realisation versus market IRE controls nsk by strict
adherence to s nsk management policy which 1s
focused on imiting commodity market exposure nsk

Unlike some of GTL's competitors, IRE did not choose
to fix margins forward significantly for its fourth fiscal
quarter ending 31 March 2011 Rather, IRE's locational
advantages of being near both the large Chicago
market for ethanol and a Rochelle intermodal container
shipment facility, which 1s used to ship a majonty of our
DDGS to Asian markets, provided additional steady
structural advantages sufficient to weather the difficult
margin envirenment during that quarter
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Yearending  Year ending % Name:a:l\e(lfgm

31 Mar 2011 31 Mar 2010 Change Local Market
Production (mi} denatured gals ) 111 102 9% 97
Ethanol yield (den gals /bushel) 2.82 2 80 1% 272
Natural Gas usage (Btu/den gal) 28,360 29,384 -3% 35,618
Commodity Margin ($/gal) $0.58 5062 5% $0.52
Ethanol price ($/gal) $1.97 3171 15% $1.96
Corn net price ($/bushel) $4.61 $3 65 26% $5.03
DDGS price ($/ton) $146 19 $130 71 12% $143

LEGISLATIVE
DEVELOPMENTS
As GTL announced on 14 October 2010, the USEPA
ruled it would now permit gasoline blends with up to 15
percent ethanol (E15), a 50% increase from the
previous hmit of 10 percent, for model year 2007 and
newer vehicles Then, in January 2011, the USEPA also
ruled on allowing up to E15 for 2001 — 2006 model year
vehicles Combined, these model year vehicles
represent approximately two-thirds of US gasoline
demand Even though vested interest parties are trying
to oppose the USEPA n these matters, over time we
expect gradual adoption at the retaill level This should
effectively lift the “ethanol blend wall” and allow ethanol
blending in the US to reach levels high enough to
absorb all the potential output of existing corn ethanol
production capacity and to reach the levels required
under the Renewable Fuels Standard (RFS2)

In calendar 2011, RFS2 calls for baseline renewable
fuels (corn based ethanol) to nse to 126 billon
gallons, up from 12 0 bilion gallons 1n calendar 2010
In following years, baseline renewable fuels are
required to nse 06 billon gallons per annum, up to
15 0 bilhon gallons by 2015 and thereafter With this
forecasted steady increase in annual demand, and with
relatively little new capacity under construction and a
hmited capability for existing plants to creep capacity
higher, GTL expects ethanol capacity utiisation should
also increase n the future

AND REGULATORY

An additional legislative development for the ethanol
industry was the extension of the Volumetric Ethanol
Excise Tax Credit {("VEETC"), otherwise known as the
“blender’s credit” of 45 cents/gallon and the secondary
ethanol import tanff of 51 cents/gallon Although the

extension 18 only for one year and is set to expire
31 December 2011, it 1s serving the purpose of buying
time for US legislators to negotiate, in the context
of a comprehensive review of US energy polcy, a
multi-year, gradual transition to an eventual sunset of
the provision Removing this tax credit completely at
this ime makes little sense if the US expects to reduce
its dependency on foreign ol

CURRENT TRADING AND PROSPECTS

Commodity margins in the US ethanol industry for
the first few months of calendar 2011 have tracked
seasonal patterns of recent years Gasoline (petrcl)
demand typically ebbs in the winter and early spring
followed by increasing demand in the late spnng and
summer months Ethanol commodity margins tend to
track closely to gasoline demand, which drnives ethanol
industry capacity utlisation We expect the historicat
seasonal trend in commodity margins to continue in
FY 2012

On the supply side, there 1s relatively little new capacity
growth coming on-line in calendar years 2011 and 2012
and lmited capacity creep from existing facilites
Demand 1s mandated to increase 0 6 billion gallons per
year up to 15 billion gallons per year in 2015 This
bodes well for tightening industry capacity utihsation
going forward

Another significant force on ethanol demand, and hence
industry margins, 1s the “blend wall® At current price
levels, there 1s a significant incentive for blenders to use
ethanol above the mandated levels The current US
Clean Arr Act imit on the ethanol content in a given
gallon of finished gasoline, however, 15 110%
Across the industry as a whole, the equivalent of almost
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

94% of gasoline 1s already at this maximum blend level
The remaining 6% opportunity 1s In remote or small
markets for which infrastructure costs to enable ethanol
blending are high Growing demand through these
channels will be slow and difficult To significantly grow
ethanol demand, the 10% blend wall needs to be
addressed through further changes n the federal and
state gasoline standards to fully allow for higher level
blends as mentioned n the Regulatory sectton Due to
the time required to retrofit the supply chain up to 15%
blend levels, positive regulatory action should only have
a gradual impact on near term demand

In summary, GTL expects industry capacity utilisation
to slowly tighten over the upcoming year

However, as higher ethano! blend levels work their
way into the market in the near future, ulimately supply
versus demand will further tighten, and ethanol margins
should benefit

FUTURE OUTLOOK

US Cormn plantings for the 2011-2012 harvest started
late In the season due to wet, cold weather This could
translate to fewer planted acres and lower yields,
however, It 1s too soon to accurately predict how much
corn will be produced compared with the nearly record
volumes expected The fall 2010-2011 harvest turned
out to be less than imhally anticipated and current
reserves are, consequently, very low Both factors are
leading to upward pressure on corn prices that are
expected to persist throughout the year

Longer-term, 1t 15 expected that worldwide agricultural
commodity markets will recover from the current
tightness brought about by adverse weather in many
key growing regions of the world Although there 1s
long-term growth in demand due to population and
dietary improvement in the developing world, there
15 also growth In production due to improved seed
genetics and agnicultural practices Although there
may be difficult years from time-to-time due to weather
anomalies, GTL believes that there i1s no long-term
structural shortage of grain for food, feed, and fuel

Energy pnces are also stubbornly high by historical
standards With continued demand growth In
developing economies, instabilty mn key crude oil
producing countries, and large investment capital flows
into (and out of} commodities, energy prices are likely to
remam high long-term, thereby supporting corn prices
but also ensuring that biofuels such as corn based
ethano! remain a value to blenders in the gasoline pool

GTL IS COMMITTED TO GROWTH

GTL 1s cementing relationships with its partners and
using its resources to 1dentfy alternative revenue
streams to move the Group to the next phase in ther
growth plan, beceming a diversified bio-refinery

Expansion into new markets and alternative revenue
streams are critical elements to future success for GTL
GTL 1s In its second year of development with Praine
Gold, Inc (“PGI”) to ultimately commercialize a patented
process for extracting zein proten from corn flour Zen
protein 1s a high value by-product that has potential
applications in food and pharmaceuticals as an edible,
biodegradable coating and encapsulate GTL has
entered intoc an exclusive collaboration agreement with
PGI to commercialize a protein extraction process that
will produce a food grade by-product from corn without
any loss to the ethanol production capacity The goal
Is to provide a diversified mix of products Iin order to
withstand the fluctuations In ethanol and cern prices
by developing new technologies and high-value
co-products from what 1s normally the low-value feed
portion of the corn sold as DDGS

GTL 1s constructing a facility at the IRE sitefor a
Combined Heat and Power (“CHP") project
A CHP system will reduce utiities costs and add to
the IRE facility's already strong competitive standing
in the industry as the closest bio refinery to the Chicago
fuels market CHP 1s a proven efficiency technology
that employs an existing underutised fuel source to
cogenerate process heat and electncty The CHP
system will use IRE's existing boilers high-pressure
steam to turn the steam turbine and generate
approximately 25 megawatts of electnicity The
electricity produced 15 expected to replace roughly
25% of the total electrnic load of the bio refinery that
is currently purchased from the focal utiity at
higher costs
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To support GTL's growth agenda, GTL added a new
member to the executive team Jeffrey Lemajeur joined
GTL as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in October
of 2010 Jeff has previously served as Chief Financial
Officer of three publicly traded companies, starting
in 1891, all of which were larger than GTL I1s currently
Jeff has been involved in numerous acquisitions,
integrations and capital transactions to finance
acquisitions which should benefit GTL as tt grows

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover for the period of $261 4 milion was generated
by ethanol and DDGS sales Ethanol sales of 110 4
millon gallons were made at an average price of
$1 97 per gallan, resulting in revenues of $218 0 million
representing 83 4% of revenue The sales increase of
$38 4 million over FY 2010 revenue of $172 6 million
was due to a higher average sales price per gallon of
$29 milion and increased volume of $94 millton
FY 2011 DDGS of 297 thousand tons at an average
gross sales price of $146 19 per ton resulted m
revenues of $43 4 millon This was up over FY 2010
revenues of $36 9 mitlhion by $6 5 milion due to higher
gross price per ton of $4 6 million and increased volume
of $1 9 million

Cost of sales of $223 4 millien includes total variable
costs of $213 2 million, plant fixed operating expenses
of $65 milion, and freight and marketing fees of
$37 miion Corn and natural gas represent 91% of
the total vanable costs Corn expense of $180 2 million
was up 344 8 million from the FY 2010 amount of
$1354 millon The Increase In corn expense was
prmarly due to higher average costs per bushel
(%4 61/bushel 1n FY 2011 versus $3 65/bushel n
FY 2010) of $37 7 millton and higher production volume
of $7 1 milon for the penod Natural gas expense of
$13 8 million was $1 5 million higher than the FY 2010
amount of $12 3 millon This increase was due to
higher unit rates of $0 8 milhion and volume increases
due to higher production of $0 7 million

Administrative  expenses of $215 million were
$2 0mibon higher than FY 2010 Admimstrative
expense ncludes depreciation, loss on disposal of
assets, plant administrative expenses, and corporate
overhead costs The increase was pnmanly due to
professional fees which increased by $15 million to
forward GTL's strategic initiatives

Administrative — exceptional was $17 million of
ncome In FY 2011 compared to $1 5 milon of iIncome
in FY 2010 Both exceptional income items related to
business Iinterruption proceeds as a result of the fire
at IRE i October of 2009 Preliminary proceeds of
$1 5 million were recewved in FY 2010 and final claim
proceeds of $1 7 mithion were received In July 2010
(FY2011) The damaged heat exchanger was replaced
in Aprit 2010 during a scheduled ptant shutdown without
incident or delays

Finance income in FY 2011 was fiat to the prior year

Finance expenses of $7 8 milion were down from last
year's $9 1 milion This reduction was a result of a
$1 3 million reduction in Interest expense due to lower
principal  balances with relatively simiar effective
interest rates Under the terms of its senior debt
agreement, IRE entered into interest rate swaps that
mature 1n July 2011 The senior lenders have agreed
that IRE will not be required to enter into interest rate
protection agreements upon the expiration of the
swaps n July 2011

In the penod, the Group reported profit before income
tax of $12 0 milhon versus profit before income tax of
$14 5 milhon for the year ended 31 March 2010
The decrease was pnmanly due to lower commodity
margins n FY 201

Income tax (expense} / credt was $4 1 million of
expense for the period versus a credit of $0 2 milhion
in the prior year In the pnor year, GTL recewed a
refund of an earlier year’'s taxes pad as a result of
an amended tax return filng For the current penod,
the Group reversed the remaining valuation allowance
of $10 milion as of 31 March 2010 relating to
Net Operating Loss (NOL) utiisation in the US
Upon elimination of the valuation allowance, GTL must
now record income tax expense at the statutory tax
rates on book income However, based on accelerated
depreciation for tax purposes, It 1s expected that GTL
will not be 1n a tax paying position for several years
GTL expects the effective tax rate for book purposes
to be n the 40% range for subsequent years
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The Group's profit for the year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company was $6 2 milion (FY 2010
$127 milion), which represents basic and dluted
earnings per share of $0 19

At the corporate level, as of 31 March 2011, there 1s
$6 9 milion of cash whichis well In excess of the
$0 5million of habiites This provides adequate
working capital for the Group's oengoing activiies and
provides a base for potential future investment projects

GTL continues to significantly reduce iis net debt
At 31 March 2011, net debt was $83 4 million, down
$14 4 milion from the 31 March 2010 balance of
$97 8 million Net debt 1s compnsed of $80 8 milhon
in senior debt plus $30 milion in subordinated debt
for total interest beanng debt of $110 8 miliion, less
cash of $27 4 milion | am proud to report that we
achieved these levels of debt repayment without using
our working capital ine this year (FY 2010 working
capital borrowing $nil) All of the Group's debt
remains at the IRE level, with no recourse aganst
GTL Resources PLC assets

LotarBote .

RICHARD RUEBE
Group CEO

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011
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THE DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

RICHARD RUEBE, GROUP CEO

Richard Ruebe has 30 years of general business
expenence In the USA, most recently in the managing
of multi-site manufacturing operaticns Prior to taking
his position with GTL Resources PLC, Richard was,
between 2002 and 2008, the Chief Executive Officer
and Vice President of Operations of Hollinee LLC,
afiberglass and non-wovens filter manufacturing
company which had nine manufacturing facilities in
Europe and the US and over 750 employees
Asits Chief Executive Officer, Richard successfully
streamlined the manufacturing facihties, improved
profitability and successfully arranged the sale of the
business Prior to this role, Richard spent seven years
as Vice President of Operations and Chief Financial
Officer of Interlake Matenal Handling Inc, a company
with sales of $300 milion In this role, Richard managed
four plants and the construction of a Greenfield faciity
in Mexico Previously, Richard worked for Boots
Pharmaceuticals, part of the Boots UK global business,
between 1992 and 1995, and Zenith Electronics Inc
between 1981 and 1992 in several financial roles
Richard has an MBA and BS in Accounting, from
the University of llinois and 1s a CPA
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JULIA HENDERSON, NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Member — GTL Resources PLC remuneration
committee and audit committee

Julia Henderson has been involved with entrepreneunal
growth companies in a wide range of sectors for the
past twenty-five years She began her corporate finance
career at ANZ Merchant Bank after which she became
a co-founder of Beeson Gregory {now Evolution
Securities), the mid market investment bank Juha has
a wealth of listed company experience and 1S now an
independent non-executive director and corporate
consultant with quoted and private mid market
companies Juha 1s also a non-executive director of
ECO Animal Health plc and Alkane Energy plc, another
quoted company In the renewable energy sector

GRAHAM WICKHAM, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Member - GTL Resources PLC remuneration
committee and audit committee

Graham Wickham has over 25 years of experience In
the London financial markets, specializing i mnvestment
analysis and corporate finance Graham joined what
was Heoare Govett, now ABN Amro Hoare Govett, in
1970 as an investment analyst and left in 1873 to join
Willlams de Broe At Willams de Broe Graham worked
on floatng and financing small companies on the
Loendon Stock Exchange’s main market and on AIM
and has held several Non-Executive Directorships
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MICHAEL NOBBS, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Member — GTL Resources PLC remuneration
committee and audit committee

Michael Nobbs has a 35-year track record in Investment
Banking, with a focus on equity, mergers and
acquisttions, and proect finance He was Managing
Director and Senior Credit Officer for Citigroup/Citibank
and Group Finance Director for Tishman International
Companies, a majer global development and
investment business Michael has participated in many
capital raisings, imtial public offerings, and corporate
acquisitions, and has run bilion dollar businesses with
full P and L accountabiity He has held positions in
London, New York and Los Angeles Today, Michael
acts as an Independent Company Director and
Investment Advisor to several companies, generally in
the Oil and Gas and Alternative Energy sectors Recent
and current Companies that Michael has served as
main Board Director include, in addition to GTL and
IRE, Sound Oll, Ithaca Energy, Plasco Energy, Mart
Resources, Mitra Energia, and Caspian Energy, among
others These entities are listed on the AIM, the TVX,
the TSX, or are still private pending IPO He charrs a
variety of Committees, including Remuneration, Audit,
Governance and Investment Two of these Companies
are actively involved pursuing Ventures in China He 1s
resident in the USA, but travels extensively in the UK,
Asia and Canada

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

MARTHA SCHLICHER, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Martha brings over 20 years of direct agncultural
industry management expenence to GTL Martha
currently leads the Bio-energy team at Monsanto and
previously led the National Corn-to-Ethano! Research
Center (NCERC) Prior to her current role at Monsanto,
Martha oversaw the commissioning and start-up of the
NCERC and its conversion to an industry-serving
facility for the commercial testing of renewable fuel
technologies In this role she became a key adwvisor to
Industral, trade, governmental, and investment groups
cn the potential of renewable fuels and the assessment
of renewable fuel technelogies Prior to this position,
Martha served in leadership roles at Monsanto
Company Her accomplishments included leading
Monsanto's Midwest sales and marketing organization,
overseeing the agricultural business’s global crop
technology pipeline, and directing worldwide regulatory
sclences Martha worked directly for Monsanto's
Agricultural Company President, teading agricuitural
strategy and merger activittes Martha has a BS
degree in Chemistry from Indiana University, a Ph D
in Organic Chemustry from the University of llbnois and
an MBA from the Kellogg Graduate School of
Management at Northwestern University Martha serves
as a Trustee for the St Louis Academy of Science, as
an industry adwvisor to the International Center for
Advanced Renewable Energy Research at Washington
Unwversity in St Louis, and as a Technical Advisor to
the NCERC

11
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their annual report and financial DIRECTORS

statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 The Directors who held office during the year were
as follows

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group owns and operates a leading ethanol and R Ruebe

bio refining company which, through its subsidiary IRE, J Henderson

produces over 110 milion gallons of ethanol per year G Wickham

from its production facility in Rochelle, llinois USA M Nobbs
M Schlicher

A review of the business dunng the year including key

performance indicators and comments upon the future M Nobbs and G J Wickham retire by rotation, and,

outlook and activities are contained in the Business and  being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

Financial Review

PROPOSED DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend (2010 none)

SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDINGS
At 31 May 2011 the following interests of shareholders holding 3% or more of the ordinary share capital of the
Company, had been notified to the Company

No of Shares % lssued
Top Investors 31 May 11 Capital
Gartmore Investment Management Limited 8,815,764 27 56%
North Atlantic Value LLP 6,527,986 2041%
Royal London Asset Management Lid 1,920,000 6 00%
Majedie Asset Management Limited 1,853,064 579%
Hargreave Hale Ltd 1,235,600 3 86%
Close Asset Management Limited 1,086,642 340%
Marc Simon Downes 1,023,500 320%

12
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POLICY AND PRACTICE ON PAYMENT OF
CREDITORS

It 1s the Group’s policy In respect of its suppliers, where
reasonably practical, to setile the terms of payment
with those suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction, to ensure that those suppliers are made
aware of the terms of payment and to abide by the terms
of payment Due to the nature of its trade creditors during
the year under review, 1t 1s not meaningful to express
the creditor payment pernod as a number of days

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The prnncipal risks and uncertainties which could have
a material impact on the Group’s performance are
discussed in the current trading and future prospects
section of the Business and Financial Review The
volatiity in the market commodity margins remains a
key nsk for GTL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The accounting treatment of financial instruments 1s
described in note 3 5 with further disclosure provided
In note 27

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group has made chantable donations in the
amount of $16,180 (FY 2010 $1C,000) dunng the year

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have considered and concluded that both
the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue n operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibiity for the Group's
system of internal control However, such a system Is
designed to manage rather than eliminate nsk of fallure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Drrectors support the recommendations set out
in Section 1 of the Combined Code prepared by the
Committee on Corporate Governance However the
Company does not need to comply with the Code as it
15 not fully sted Furthermore, the Directors consider
that it 1s not practical to comply fully with the Combined
Code’s recommendations due to the size and nature
of the Group

As an AIM Iisted company, the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Regulations 2002 are not applicable, and as
such, a report on Directors’ remuneration has not been
prepared Further detalls of Directors' remuneration are
detailed in note 10 to the financial statements

The Company operates with a remuneration committee
and an audit committee The remuneration committee
Is compnsed of Graham Wickham and Julla Henderson
and 1s chaired by Michael Nobbs It reviews the scale
and structure of the Executive Directors remuneration
and the term of ther service contracts The
remuneration and terms and conditions of the Non-
Executive Directors are set by the Board No Director
may participate in any meeting at which discussions or
decisions regarding hisfher own remuneration take
place The remuneration committee also administers
the Company’s share incentive schemes

The audit committee 15 comprised of Michael Nobbs
and Julla Henderson, and s chared by Graham
Wickham It 1s responsible for ensuring that the financial
performance of the Group I1s properly reported on and
monitored, and for reviewing the auditor reports relating
to the accounts

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company 1s to be
held on 28 September 2011 A separate notice of the
meeting will be issued, which detals the varnocus
resolutions to be proposed and 1f thought fit, adopted
by the shareholders

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

The Directors who held office at the date of approvail
of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of
which the Company's auditor 1s unaware, and each
Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any
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relevant audit informatton and to establish that the
Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information
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AUDITOR

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act
20086, a resofution for the continuation of PKF (UK) LLP
as auditor of the Company 1s to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

%&#ﬁw&-\

By order of the Board

JULIA HENDERSON
Chairman

14 June 2011
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the
directors’ report and the financiat statements n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have, as required by the AIM Rules of the
London Stock Exchange, elected to prepare the group
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and have also elected to prepare the
parent company financial statements n accordance
with those standards Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the
state of affairs of the company and the group and of the
profit or loss of the group for that penod In preparing
these financial statements the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

+ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

+ state whether the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume
that the company and the group will continue In
business

The directors are responstble for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the company and the group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responstble for
safeguarding the assets of the company and the group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integnty of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’'s website Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial statements and other
information included in annual reports may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

15
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ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY SUMMARY

ENVIRONMENTAL,
VISION STATEMENT
GTL 1s committed to achieving excellence in providing
a safe, healthy, and environmentally responsible place
to work and vist GTb's policy 1s to comply with all
applicable environmental, health and safety laws
and regulations and support employee awareness
and participatton GTL's goal 1s the prevention of all
workplace njunes and illnesses, environmental
inctdents, property loss or damage and disruptions
to public health and safety Achieving this goal 1s
the responsibility of every GTL employee

HEALTH AND SAFETY

EHS PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

GTL utihizes an Environmental Management Program
(‘EMP*) and a Safety Management Program {“SMP")
to help meet its mission The programs work closely
together to achieve environmental, health, and safety
compliance Both programs follow a model of identifying
potenttal hazards, assessing significance in terms of
seventy and likelhoed of occurrence, developing
approaches to reduce nsk, and follow-up verffication
that the risk 1s reduced

SAFETY SUMMARY

The Safety Coordinator oversees health and safety
imbhatives at the facility and reports directly to GTL's
Plant Manager The Safety Coordinator provides
regular updates to the Board of Directors and works Iin
collaboration with the facility's management team to
evaluate and update the safety program

The Safety Management Program also provides health
and safety traiming for contractors ang consultants
working at the faclity Random inspections are
performed to ensure that contractors and consultants
are working in a safe, healthful and environmentally
responsible manner For major contracts, and for any
work in potentially hazardous locations, GTL assesses
contractors’ and censultants’ safety records as part of
the selection process
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Additional improvements for FY 2011 include a
Behavioural-Based safety wtiative and Near Miss
reporting program The Behavioural-Based safety
intbiative 15 designed to increase the awareness that
safety 1s every GTL team member's responsibility
This program 1s then coupled with a Stop and Think
mentality prior to performing all jobs The Near Miss
initiative was instituted to heighten all GTL employees’
awareness of potential hazards within the faciity and to
mitigate any potential 1Issues identified These programs
are also tied to each employee by conducting a
minimum of two safety observations per year

HEALTH SUMMARY

GTL takes a personal interest in maimntaining the health
of its employees All of the employees that work In the
plant are required to participate in annual testing of therr
hearnng and breathing function In additien, GTL offers
employees with an option to receive a flu vaccination
each year GTL also offers a voluntary wellness testing
program to heighten GTL employee’s heath awareness

HEALTH AND SAFETY RECORD

The Safety Management Program maintains up-to-date
records pertaining to employee health and safety,
including documenting all safety related training The
added focus on safety resulted in GTL recording no lost
time accidents and zero OSHA recordable incidents for
FY 2011 This 1s a substantial improvement compared
to the past fiscal year and 1s directly attnbuted to the
new safety programs implemented during FY 2011
These programs are a continued effort to drive down
the recordable incidents and to mitigate and eliminate
lost time incidents all together

ENVIRONMENTAL

Fiscal year 201t was an active year for GTL's
Environmental Management Program GTL complied
with new federal regulations for environmental
compliance, upgraded environmental control
equipment, applied for permits to increase the ethanol
production rate, and provided environmental education
opportunities for the community
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ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY SUMMARY

Greenhouse Gas Reporting

GTL completed its first year of greenhouse gas
emisston record keepmg and reporting The emissions
data will be used by the USEPA on an on-going basis to
help the agency better understand where greenhouse
gases are coming from and guide the development of
palictes and programs to reduce emissions and mitigate
chmate change

USEPA Emissions Modeling

GTL supported the USEPA's National Risk
Management Research Laboratory in ther efforts to
model the environmental impact of ethanol facilites
USEPA representatives were hosted at the GTL facility
where they gained valuable knowledge of how ethanol
faciliies operate GTL representatives continued to
collaborate with the USEPA to further the agency's
understanding of ethanol facilities

Renewable Fuels Standard

GTL complied with the USEPA's Renewable Fuel
Standard As part of the complance effort, GTL
commissioned a third-party environmental audit of the
ethanol facility to demonstrate that the facility meets
the requirements of a renewable fuel producer

Permit for Increased Ethanol Production Rate

GTL was granted an llinois EPA permit to install more
efficient dust collection equipment at its ethanol faciity
GTL also submitted an llincis EPA permit application
to increase its ethanol production rate GTL anticipates
that the llincis EPA will i1ssue the permut In fiscal
year 2012

Combined Heat and Power Electricity Generation

An energy efficiency project was intiated at the GTL
ethanol facility The design work 1s underway for a
steam turbine generator that will be integrated into
the ethanol faciity The turbine will make use of high
pressure steam availlable at the ethanol facility to
generate electricity This project will provide 25% of
the facility's electnicity needs Funding for this project
will be partially provided by a grant from the Illinois
Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity

Boiler Controls Upgrade

GTL inthated a project to upgrade the controls of the
ethanol facility's steam bolers The upgrades will
reduce natural gas consumption and ncorporate
automated fiue gas recirculation to reduce ritrogen
oxide emissions

Water Reduction Study

GTL co-authored a report to follow-up on an extensive
evaluation of water use at GTL's ethanol facility
The study, entitled “Reducing Water Consumption in
Dry-Grind Ethano! Manufacture,” was presented at the
Fuel Ethanol Workshop, June 16, 2010, in St Louis
Missoun GTL s in the process of implementing key
recommendations from the study that reduce water
consumption and increase plant efficiency

Environmental Education

GTL hosted educators from the DeKalbk County Farm
Bureau's Summer Agricultural institute as part of therr
graduate-level course, entitled “Teaching about
Agniculture and Sustamability” The teachers will use
the knowledge gained to introduce therr students to the
importance of sustainable agriculture

GTL visited the Hubble Middle School in Warrenville,
llincis to teach students about fuel ethanol and the
environment The students were educated on GTL's
ethanol produchion process and current 1ssues such as
gas mileage, food versus fuel, water use and land use
as related to ethanol production

17
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF GTL RESOURCES PLC

We have audited the financial statements of GTL
Resources Plc for the year ended 31 March 2011, which
comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the conscldated and company statements
of changes In equity, the consolidated and company
statements of financial posihon, the consolidated and
company statements of cash flows and the related notes
The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation 1s applicable law and Intermational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Umion and, as regards the parent
company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as
a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and far view Our
responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and [nternational
Standards on Audting (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures n the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate ta the Group's
and the parent company's circumstances and have
been consistently applted and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addstion, we read all the
financial and non-financial information In the annual
report to 1dentfy matenal inconsistencies with the
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audited financial statements If we become aware of
any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and far view of
the state of the Group’s and the parent company's
affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of the Group's profit
for the year then ended,

« the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union,

« the parent company financial statements have been
propery prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union as apphed in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

+ the financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2008

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the iInformation given In the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, in our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

e certan disclosures of drectors' remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

s we have not received all the
explanations we require for our audit

/Z[’f(wdlvhﬂ
_—

RICHARD WILSON (Senior Statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of PKF (UK) LLP, Statutory auditor

Nothingham, UK 14 June 2011

information and
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2011 2010
for the year ended 31 March 2011 Note $000 $000
Revenue 261,447 216,627
Cost of sales (223,397) (176,585)
Gross profit 38,050 40,042
Administrative expenses {21,492) {19,504)
Administrative — exceptional 7 1,679 1,500
Operating profit 7 18,237 22,038
Finance income 11 1,589 1,516
Finance expenses 11 (7,842) (9,056)
Profit before tax 11,984 14,498
Income tax {expense) / credit 12 (4,100) 162
Profit for the peniod 7,884 14,660
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 7,884 14,660
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 6,175 12,677
Non-controlling interest 1,709 1,983
Profit for the period 7,884 14,660
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 6,175 12,677
Non-contralling interest 1,709 1,983
7,884 14,660
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per ordinary share (dollars) 22 $0.19 $0 40
Diluted earnings per ordinary share (dollars) 22 $0.19 $0 39

All results derive from continuing operations
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Share Translation Retaned contrgﬁ:g; Total
capital premium reserve  earnings Total interest equity
for the year ended 31 March 2011 $000 $000 $000 $C00 $000 $000 $000
At 1 Apnl 2009 60,205 317 487 (9,859) 51,150 5,804 56,954
Profit for the period - - - 12,677 12677 1,983 14,660
Distribution - - - - - (133) (133)
[ssue of ordinary shares upon exercise of warrants - - - - - 5 5
Share based payment transactions - - - 37 37 - 37
Foreign currency translation reserve transfer - - (487) 437 - - -
At 31 March 2010 60,205 317 — 3,342 63,864 7659 71523
At 1 April 2010 60,205 317 - 3,342 63,864 7,659 71,523
Profit for the perniod - - - 6175 6,175 1,709 7,384
Share based payment transactions - - - 106 106 - 106
At 31 March 2011 60,205 317 - 9,623 70,145 9,368 79,513
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Share Share Translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
for the year ended 31 March 2011 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 April 2009 60,205 317 487 5,333 66,342
Loss for the pencd - - - {605) (605)
Foreign currency translation reserve transfer - - (487) 487 -
Share based payments transactions - - - 37 37
At 31 March 2010 60,205 317 - 5,252 65,774
At 1 April 2010 60,205 317 - 5,252 65,774
Loss for the period - - - (709) (709)
Share based payments transactions - - - 106 106
At 31 March 2011 60,205 317 - 4,649 65,171
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 March 2011 Mote §g£ §888
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 156,872 164,186
Intangible assets - goodwil 14 7,390 7,390
Investments 510 -
Other financral assets 16 10,384 17,588
Total non current assets 175,156 189,164
{nventories 18 10,744 5,409
Trade and other receivables 19 3,931 3,431
Other current assets 1,272 1,490
Other financial assets 16 10,136 6,767
Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,895 8,616
Total current assets 32,978 25,713
Total assets 208,134 214,877
Equity

Share capital 21 60,205 60,205
Share premium 317 317
Retained earnings 9,623 3,342
Total equity attnbutable to equity holders of the Company 70,145 63,864
Non-controlling interest 9,368 7,659
Total equity 79,513 71,523
Liabilities

Loans and borrowings 23 103,752 123,752
Deferred revenue 24 3,846 3,527
Deferred tax habilities 17 4,100 -
Total non current habilities 111,698 127,279
Trade and other payables 25 9,418 7,014
Other financial iabilities at fair value through the profit and loss 27 332 1,891
Loans and borrowings 23 7,039 7,039
Deferred revenue 24 134 131
Total current liabilities 16,923 16,075
Total habilities 128,621 143,354
Total equity and habilities 208,134 214,877

These financial statements were authorised for issue and approved by the Board of Directors on 14 June 2011 and

were signed on its behalf by

@LM

RICHARD RUEBE
Director
GTL Resources PLC

Registered Company number 2811366
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 March 2011 Note “5’833 ggag
Assets

Investments 15 56,550 56,294
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,788 2,020
Total non current assets 59,338 58,314
Trade and other recervables 19 11 24
Other current assets 10 16
Cash and cash equwalents 20 5973 7,508
Total current assets 5,994 7.548
Total assets 65,332 65,862
Equity

Share capital 21 60,205 60,205
Share premium 317 317
Retained earnings 4,649 5,252
Total equity attnibutable to equity holders of the Company 65,171 65,774
Liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 161 88
Total current labihities 161 88
Total liabilities 161 88
Total equity and habilities 65,332 65,862

These financial statements were authonsed for issue and approved by the Board of Directors on 14 June 2011 and
were signed on its behalf by

(Lt 2Pt

RICHARD RUEBE

Director

GTL Resources PLC

Registered Company number 2811366

22




Fl

GTL RESOURCES PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

2011 2010

for the year ended 31 March 2011 Note $000 $000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) for the pernod 7,884 14,660

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization 13 11,921 14,858

Deferred revenue recognised (134) (131)

Loss on disposal of assets 319 83

Net finance expense 1 6,253 7,540

Share-based payment transactions 26 106 37

Income tax expense/{credit) 12 4,100 {162)

Cash flows from operating activities 30,449 33,885

Change in inventories 18 {5,335) 602

Change in trade and other receivables 19 (500) (288)
Change in other current assets 212 (432)
Change n trade and other payables (excluding accrued interest) 25 2,438 48

Post working capital cash flows from operating activities 27,264 33,815

Interest paid (7,876) (9,500)
Income tax receved/(paid) - 162

Net cash from operating activities 19,388 24 477

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 1" 31 28

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 13 {4,924) (1,691}
Investments {510) -

Other financial asset deposits 16 3,835 (13,686)
Net cash from investing activities (1,568) (15,349)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from new borrowings - 14,613

Proceeds from grant award 459 -

Repayment of finance leases - (133)
Distnbution to non-controlling mterest - (133)
Repayment of borrowings {20,000) (23,719)
Net cash from financing activities (19,541) (9,372)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,721) (244)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 8,616 8,860

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20 6,895 8,616
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2011 2010
for the year ended 31 March 2011 Note $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the pericd (709) (608)
Adjustments for

Net finance expense - (14)
Share-based payment fransachons 26 106 37
Unrealized {gan) on exchange rate fluctuations (4) -
Cash flows from operating activities {607) (583)
Change n trade and other receivables 19 13 4
Change n other current assets 10 10
Change in amounts due from group undertakings (767) -
Change In trade and other payables 25 73 (174)
Net cash from operating activities {1,278) (743)
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest receved 3 19
Investments (260) -
Net cash from investing activities {257) 19
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,535) (724)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 7,508 8,232
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20 5,973 7,508
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY

GTL Resources PLC (*GTL" or the "Company”) 18 a
company incorporated 1n England and Wales The
Group financial statements consolidate those of the
Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as
the "Group"}

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared n
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union, and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the applcation
of policies and reported amounts 1n the financial
statements The areas involving a higher degree of
Judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
or estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 2 5

A separate statement of comprehensive income for the
parent company has not been presented as permitted
by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

2.1 Adoption of standards effective in 2010
The following standards that have an effect on the
group have been applied from 1 Apnl 2010

« IAS 27 (Revised) Consoldated and separate
financial statements

+ IFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

IAS 27 (Revised) ‘Consolidated and separate financial
statements’ (effective for annual penods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009) The revised standard was 1ssued
In January 2008 and requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of
control) 15 accounted for as an equity transaction
Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise
to goodwill, nor will they give nse to a gain or loss
Furthermore, the amended standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary and

the loss of control of a subsidiary The new
requrements did not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements

IFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business combinations’ (effective for
business combinations occurring In accounting pernods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009) This standard
continues to apply the acquisition method to business
combinations However, 1t introduces a number of
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changes that will impact the amount of goodwill
recognised, the reported results in the penod that an
acquisitton occurs, and future reported results The
new requirements did not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements

2.2 IFRS standards and interpretations i1ssued but
not yet applied

Additional standards and interpretations have been
1issued, but are not yet effective These are available for
early application, but have not yet been applied by the
Group in these financial statements Application of
these standards and interpretations are not expected to
have a matenal effect on the financial statements in the
future The Group intends to apply these standards and
interpretations when they become effective

2.3 Going concern

The Group forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance,
show that the Group 15 expected to have a sufficient
level of financial resources available through cash
generation and borrowings The Directors therefore
believe that the Group 15 well placed to manage their
business risks successfully despite the economic
uncertainty and continue as a going concern

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in US dotlars,
which 1s the company and subsidianies functional
currency All financial information presented in dollars
has been rounded to the nearest thousand

2.5 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses Actual results may differ from
these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised In the period in which the estimates are
revised and i any future penods affected

In particular, information about significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and crbcal judgements In
applying accounting polcies that have the most
signficant effect on the amounts recogrised In the
financial statements is included in the following notes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 3 — property, plant, and equipment
Note 4 — determination of far values

Note 14 — intangible assets

Note 17 — deferred tax assets and habilities
Note 26 — share-based payments, and

Note 27 - financial instruments

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which
control 1s transferred until the date that the control
ceases

Subsidianies are all entittes over which the group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
s0 as to obtain benefit from their activities

The purchase, or acquisition, method of accounting Is
used to account for the acquisitton of subsidiaries by
the group The cost of the acquisition 1S measured as
the farr value of assets transferred, equity instruments
Issued and llabilibes incurred at the date of exchange

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated

3.2 Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisihions comprises the excess of the
fair value of the consideration plus any associated costs
for investments in the subsidiary undertakings over the
far value of the net identifiable assets acquired and
llabthties assumed Adjustments are made to far values
to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses
into algnment wath those of the group The costs of
Iintegrating and reorganising acquired businesses are
charged to the post acquisition iIncome statement

Goodwill 15 carned at cost less accumulated impairment
losses Gocdwill 1s tested for impairment annually
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost less accumnulated depreciation and impairment
losses

Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attnbutable to
the acquisstion of the asset The cost of self-constructed

assets includes the cost of matenals and direct labour
and any other costs directly atirbutable to bringing the
asset to a werking condibon for its intended use
Purchased software that 1s integral to the functionality
of the related equipment 1s capitalised as part of that
equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant
and equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and are recognised net
within ‘other income’ 1n profit or loss

{n) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant
and equipment 1S recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it 1s probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group
and its cost can be measured reliably The carrying
amount of the replaced part 1s derecognised The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in prcfit or loss as incurred

(1ii) Depreciation

Depreciatton 15 charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the estmated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
Land 1s not depreciated

The estimated useful ives are as follows

land improvements 10-39 years
buildings and improvements 7-39 years
machinery and equipment 3-20 years
fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

Assets under construction are depreciated from the
date they are ready for their intended use

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each balance sheet date

3.4 Impairment of assets

The group assesses annually whether there 1s any
indecation that any of its assets have been impared |If
such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount
15 estimated and compared to its carrying value

For goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite
Iife, and intangible assets not yet available for use, the
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recoverable amount 1s estimated annually and
whenever there 1s an indication of imparrment

An 1mparrment loss I1s recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds Its
recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised
in the profit or loss

3.5 Financial instruments

The group classtfies financial instruments, or ther
component parts, on nmial recognibon as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument n
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement

Financial instruments are recognised on trade date
when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument Financial instruments are
recognised imitially at fair value plus, in the case of a
financial instrument not at fair value through profit and
loss, transactions costs that are directly attnbutable to
the acquisition or 1ssue of the financial instrument

Financial instruments are derecognised on trade date
when the group s no longer a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss

Financial assets at farr value through profit and loss
compnse denvative financial instruments, namely
interest rate swaps Subsequent to initial recognition
financial assets at farr value through profit and loss are
stated at fair value Movements in farr values are taken
directly to profit or loss

) Trade receivables

Trade recewvables are stated at ther orniginal invoiced
value Trade receiwvables are reduced by approprate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts
Interest on overdue trade recewvables I1s recognised as
it accrues

(in} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash eguivalents compnse short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insigrnuficant nsk of changes in value An investment
with & matunty of three months or less 1s normally
classified as being short-term Cash and cash
equivalents do not include other financial assets

{(iv) Other financial assets
Other financial assets include investments of restricted
use, debt service and contingency accounts The
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restricted use bank deposits are current cash funds
drawn down under the terms of the senior debt
agreement that are to be applied to specific trade
creditor balances The debt service accounts must be
mamntained under loan covenants to guarantee the
capability of the Group to make mimimum interest and
loan repayments The contingency accounts are
earmarked for potential silo related expenses

As such these amounts are not free to be used in the
ordinary course of business, so are not disclosed
alongside ordinary cash balances

{v) Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at ther onginal invoiced
value

{vi) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearnng borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial habiity and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant penod The effective interest
rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected hfe of the financial
habilty

3.6 Retirement benefits

The group operates a defined contribution plan for
employees A defined contnbution plan i1s one where the
group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
These contributions are expensed in the period in which
they accrue

3.7 Revenue

The Group’s revenue denves from its principal activity
which 1s carned out in the United States of America
Revenue from the sale of goods 1s measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates Revenue
Is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery
of the consideration 1s probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,
there 15 no continuing management involvemnent with
the gcods, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably

Transfers of nsks and rewards vary depending on the
individual terms of the contract of sale For sales of
ethanol and distillers grains, this 1s usually at the time of
loading into trucks, railcars or containers of the relevant
carner as this 1s the point at which the customer takes
ownership of the product and assumes nisk of loss
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3.8 Inventornies

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost or net
realisable value Cost I1s determined on the first-in first-
out principle, and includes expenditure Iincurred In
acquinng the inventornies, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existng iocation and conditon In the case of
manufactured inventories and work In progress, cost
includes an appropnate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of husiness, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses

39 Leases

Leases in which substantially all the nsks and rewards
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Payments made under these operating leases
are recognised In profit or loss on a straight Iine basis
over the term of the lease Benefits received as an
incentive to sign a lease, whatever form they may take,
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term

Leases of machinery in which substantially all the nisks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the group are
classified as finance leases At the commencement of
the lease term, finance leases are capitalised at the
lower of the farr value of the leased machinery and the
present value of the minimum lease payments

The lease payments are allocated between the liabihity
and finance costs The Interest element of these
payments In charged to profit and loss over the lease
period The machinery acquired under the finance lease
15 depreciated over the shorter of its useful life and that
of the lease term

3 10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attrnbutable to the
acquisition, constructon or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset

3.11 Government grants

Government grants relating to depreciable assets are
iniially credited fo a deferred revenue account and
recognised as mcome over the pertods and In the
proportions in which depreciation on those assets Is
charged In FY 2011, the Group was awarded capital
grants from the llinois Department of Commerce and
Economic Opportunity in the amounts of $0 2 mllion
and 312 million, which are to be used to fund the
purchase of specific project related equipment

3.12 Share based payments

Employee share options are measured at farr value at
grant date using the Black-Scholes model The far
value 15 expensed on a straight line basis over the
vesting period, based on an estimate of the number of
options that will eventually vest

3 13 Taxation

Income tax for the penod 1s based on the taxable
income for the year Taxable income differs from profit
as reported In the statement of comprehensive income
for the period as there are some items which may never
be taxable or deductible for tax and other items which
may be deductible or taxable in other periods Income
tax for the penod 1s calculated using the current ruling
tax rate

Deferred tax 1s the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts
and tax bases of assets and liabilities shown on the
statement of financial position Deferred tax assets and
habiliies are not recognised if they arise in the following
situations the initial recognition of goodwill, or the inibal
recognition of assets and labilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit The amount of deferred
tax provided 15 based on the expected manner of
recovery or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and habiities, using tax rates enacted or substantally
enacted at the statement of financial position date

The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabihties, or
deferred tax assets, on temporary differences
assoclated with Investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates where the parent company 1s
able to control of the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and 1t 1s not considered probable
that the temporary dfferences will reverse in the
foreseeable future It 1s the Group’s policy to reinvest
undistributed profits arnising in group companies

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent
that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be
avallable against which the asset can be utilised The
carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each statement of financial position date and reduced
to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered
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4 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group's accounting polictes and
disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non-financ:al assets and lhabilities
Far values have been determined for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes based on the following
methods When applicable, further infermation about
the assumptions made In determining farr values 1s
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or hability

4 1 Denvatives

The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s based on bank
quotes Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by
discounting estimated future cash flows based on the
terms and matunty of each contract and using market
interest rates for a similar instrument at the
measurement date

4.2 Share-based payment transactions

The far value of employee share options granted 1s
measured using an option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions wpon which the
options were granted The amount recognised as an
expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest except where variations are
due only {o share prices not achieving the threshold
for vesting Measurement inputs include share price
on measurement date, exercise price of the instrument,
expected volatiity (based on weighted average
historic volatility), wetghted average expected hfe of
the instruments, expected dividends, and the nsk-free
interest rate (based on government bonds) Service
and non-market performance conditions attached to
the transactions are not taken nto account In
determining fair value

4 3 Non-derivative financial habilities

Fair value, which 1s determined for disclosure purposes,
Is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date For finance
leases, the market rate of interest 1s determined by
reference to similar lease agreements
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following nisks from its
use of financial instruments

— credit rnisk,

— hquidity nsk,

— market nsk,

— Interest rate nsk, and
— capital management

This note presents information about the Group's
exposure to each of the above nsks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing nsk, and the Group’'s management of capital
Further quanttative disclosures are included throughout
these conschdated financial statements

The Board of Directors has overall responsibiity for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk
management framework  The Directors have
established nsk management policies to establish,
identfy and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropniate risk mits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to lmits Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group's activities The
Group, through its traiming and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees
understand therr roles and obligations

Financial nsk management 1s carned out on a Group
basis and the company Is not considered to be exposed
to any further significant nsks

§.1 Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obhgations, and anses pnincipaily
from the Group's receivables from customers

The Group's exposure to credit nsk i1s influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer The
demographics of the Group's customer base, including
the default nsk of the industry and country in which
customers operate, has less of an influence on credit
rnsk On entering into any business contract the extent
to which the arrangement exposes the Group to credit
nsk 1s considered
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The majority of the Group’s revenue I1s attributable to
sales transactions with three customers Ethanol sales
are mostly made directly to CHS Renewable Fuels, a
subsidiary of CHS Inc (a Fortune 200 company), and an
oll major Distiller's grains are pnincipally sold to United
Bio Energy (UBE)} who are international commodity
traders with a speciality in gramns

Any new customers are analysed indvidually for
creditworthiness before the Group commences trade
The Group's review may Include external ratings,
when avallable, and in most cases bank references
Customers that fal to meet the Group's
creditworthiness requirements may transact with
the Group only on a prepayment basis

Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the
Group's three major customers noted above No
customers are considered to be ‘high nsk’ Amounts
receivable are recarded at the invoiced amount and do
not bear interest The Group does not have any off-
balance sheet credit exposure related to its customers

At the reporling date there are no indications that
the debtors will not meet their payment obligations
The Group has not experenced any write offs of
uncollectible amounts Therefore no such loss
allowance 1s considered appropriate at 31 March 2011

5 2 Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk 1s the nisk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The
Group’s approach to managing hquidity 1s to ensure, as
far as possible, that it will always have sufficient iguidity
to meet its liabiliies when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without ncurnng unacceptable
losses or nsking damage to the Group’s reputation

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash
on demand to meet expected operational expenses,
and availability of finance for capital projects before
undertaking such projects, including the servicing of
financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters

The Group entered into a Senior Credit Agreement with
WestlLB, AG (“WesiLB") acting as Administrative Agent,
Lead Arranger, and Syndication Agent for a syndicate
of lenders on 20 July 2007 The agreement provides
fora term loan of $117,310,000 and Working Capital
borrowings of up to $10,000,000 In addtion, IRE
entered into a subordinated Loan Agreement and
Promissory Note of $30,000,000 with the Ilinois
Finance Authonty (“IFA"} for the purpose of secunng
solid waste disposal bonds issued by the IFA, on 1 July
2007 The agreements are secured by substantially all
assets of IRE

The term loan’s targeted payoff 1s 19 June 2015 and
bears an interest rate of LIBOR + 3 5% IRE 1s required
to make mimnimum quarterly payments of 15% of the
amount borrowed at nception ($117,310,000)
At 31 March 2011, outstanding term loan borrowings
and accrued interest totalled $80,721,000 and $nil,
respectively Cash paid for interest totalled $7,876,000
during FY 2011 (FY 2010 $9,501,000)

The working capital borrowing was $nil as of 31 March
2011 (31 March 2010 $nil) and had accrued Interest
totalling $nit as of 31 March 2011 {31 March 2010 $nil)

Principal outstanding on the subordinated note at
31 March 2011 was $30,000,000 (31 March 2010
$30,000,000) Accrued Interest on the subordinated
note as of 31 March 2011 was $600,000 (31 March
2010 $600,000)

5 3 Market risk

Market risk 1s the nsk that changes in market prices,
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Group’s Income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments The objective of
market risk management i1s to manage and control
market sk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return

(1) Ethanol and DDGS

From tme to time the Group enters into fixed price
contracts for ethanol at agreed prices for some of its
expected future sales The Group’s exposure to market
volatiity 1s therefore reduced on this volume As with all
other sales by the Group, these sales are accounted for
at the pont that product 1s dispatched, in accordance
with the policy descnbed in note 37
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{n) Corn and natural gas

The Group works with its corn and natural gas suppliers
to reduce exposure to future pnce volatiity by the
suppher entening inte futures and options contracts to
enable it to offer the Group hmited exposure to price
movements

(i) Currency risk

Al Group entities functional currency 15 US dollars
Itis not significantly exposed to foreign transaction
exchange nsk because the majonty of its cash flows
dernve from its production and sales functions operating
wholly within the USA and all of these transactions are
denominated in US dollars However, a small amount
of transactions undertaken by the ultimate holding
company are made in GBP sterling

Any sterling currency deposits made by the Company
are used to fund sterhing cash flows This provides a
degree of economic hedge and no dervatives are
entered into

Interest on borrowings 1s denominated in US dollars
which matches the cash flows generated by the
underlying operations of the Group This provides an
economic hedge and no currency dernvatives are
entered into

5.4 Interest rate risk

{1) Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities

It s Group poiicy to mamntain flexibiity over early
repayment of loans by not fixing the interest rates of all
loans When the Group enters into vanable rate finance
agreements tt 1s exposed to interest rate nsk from the
possibility that changes n interest rates will affect future
cash flows or the far values of its financral instruments,
principally finance debt To avoid exposure to interest
rate risk, in the year ended 31 March 2011 the Group
(as IRE) has used denvatives to swap the profile of part
of its vaniable rate debt to a fixed rate
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{ii) Borrowing facilities

At 31 March 2011, IRE had a committed working capital
faciity of $10,000,000 (31 March 2010 $10,000,000),
of which $nil (31 March 2010 $nil) was drawn down
This facility 15 at a vanable rate interest based upon
LIBOR + 3 5% (FY 2010 LIBOR + 3 5%)

The senior debt at 31 March 2011 was $80,791,000
This loan 1s at a variable rate interest based upon
LIBOR + 3 5% (FY 2010 LIBOR + 3 5%)

At 31 March 2011, IRE had junior debt of $30,000,000
(31 March 2010 $30,000,000) of which the full amount
was drawn down A fixed rate of interest of 8 5% per
annum 1s payable on this debt

In August 2007, IRE entered into an interest rate swap
relating to a portion of its senior debt, variable rate
LIBOR exposure for payment of a fixed rate of 5 05%
and offset by a rate receipt of LIBOR In May 2008, IRE
entered Into a second swap for payment at a fixed rate
of 3 5275% and offset by a rate receipt of LIBOR The
senior lenders have agreed that IRE will not be required
to enter into interest rate protection agreements upon
the exptration of the swaps i July 2011

5 5 Capital management

IRE has $80,791,000 of senior debt and $30,000,000 of
subordinated debt as of 31 March 2011 IRE holds three
types of restricted use bank deposits to manage its
capital requirements for 1ts debt, restncted use bank
deposits, debt service bank deposits, and contingency
bank deposits The restricted use bank deposits are
current cash funds, drawn down under the terms of the
senior debt agreement, which are to be applied to
specific trade creditor balances The accumulation of
profits are maintained n the restricted use bank deposit
account and at the end of each quarter a pnncipal
payment 1s made by sweeping the account balance less
operating fund requirements, but not less than 1 5% of
the loan balance at conversion The debt service bank
depostts must be maintained under loan covenants to
guarantee the capability of the Group to make minimum
interest and loan repayments The contingency deposits
are earmarked for potential silo related expenses
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Managements approach to reporting the financial performance and position of its business i1s as follows

FY 2011 FY 2011 FY 2011 FY 2010  FY 2010 FY 2010

IRE Head office Total IRE Head office Total

Statement of comprehensive income $000 $000 $000 $000 3000 3000
Ethanol Revenue 218,029 - 218,029 179,677 - 179,677
DDGS Revenue 43,394 - 43,394 36,950 - 36,950
Other Revenue 24 - 24 - - -
Net Revenues 261,447 - 261,447 216,627 - 216,627
Varnable Costs of production (213,153) - {213,153) (165,535) - (165,535)
Freight (3,714) - {3,714} (5.310) - {5,310)
Fixed Costs of production (6,530) - {6,530) (5,740) - (5,740)
Total Production Costs (223,397) -~ (223,397) (176,585) — (176,585)
Gross Margin 38,050 38,050 40,042 40,042
Admin Costs (6,286) (3,083) (9,369) (5,824) (1,829) (7,653)
Charge Outs {1,958) 1,958 - {856) 856 -
Other Income 1,679 - 1,679 1,500 - 1,500
Total Fixed Costs (6,565) (1,125) (7,690) (5,180) (973}  (6,153)
EBITDA 31,485 (1,125) 30,360 34,862 (973) 33,889
Depreciation & Amortization {11,956) 39 (11,917) (11,897) 39 (11,858
Interest Income 25 6 31 14 14 28
Interest (Expense) (7,842) - (7,842) (9,058) - (9,058)
Profit/(Loss) Before Other income 11,712 (1,080) 10,632 13,923 (920) 13,003
Other income/{expense) 1,522 (170} 1,352 1,495 - 1,485
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax & Non-controling Int 13,234 (1,250) 11,984 15,418 (920) 14,498
Taxation - (4,100) (4,100) - 162 162
Profit/{Loss} before Non-controlling interest 13,234 (5,350) 7,884 15,418 (758) 14,660
Equity Non-controlling interest - (1,709) (1,709) - (1,983) {1,983)
Profit/(Loss) 13,234 (7,059) 6,175 15,418 (2,741 12677

The Directors believe that the revenue achieved through the sale of DDGS does not constitute an operating
segment as defined by applicable accounting standards DDGS 1s a by-product from the production process of

ethanol and revenues are monitored accordingly
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FY 2011 FY 20114 FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2010 FY 2010
o TR W e "UR
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 152,547 260 152,807 159,296 - 159,296
Investments in other companies - 510 510 - - -
Restncted cash — Operating - - ~ - - -
Restricted cash — Cont Reserve - - - 7,191 - 7,191
Deferred Financing Fees 4,261 {196) 4,065 5,129 (239) 4,890
Restricted cash — Debt Service 10,384 - 10,384 10,397 - 10,397
Intangible assets 7,198 192 7,390 7,198 192 7,390
Total fixed assets 174,390 766 175,156 189,211 (47) 189,164
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash at bank and in hand 42 6,853 6,895 40 8,576 8,616
Restncted cash — Cont Reserve 4,636 - 4,636 - - -
Restricted cash — Operating 5,500 - 5,500 6,767 - 8,787
Stock 10,745 - 10,745 5,408 - 5,408
Trade Receivables 3,758 162 3,920 2,405 2 2,407
Prepayments 1,243 29 1,272 1,440 51 1,491
Other Recevables - 10 10 1,000 24 1,024
Total current assets 25,924 7,054 32,978 17,060 8,653 25713
Total Assets 200,314 7,820 208,134 206,271 8,606 214,877
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade creditors 6,988 3 7,019 4,643 11 4,654
Deferred Revenue (Grant) 131 3 134 131 - 131
Current portion of LT Debt 7,039 - 7,039 7,039 - 7,039
Interest swap habilities 332 - 332 1,891 - 1,891
Accruals 1,909 490 2,399 1,949 411 2,360
Total Current Liabilities 16,399 524 16,923 15,653 422 16,075
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

FY 2011 FY 2011 FY 2011 FY 2010  FY 2010 FY 2010
s00 o 5060 000 5000 | 8000 3000
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Long Term Debt 103,752 - 103,752 123,752 -~ 123,752
Deferred Revenue (Grant) 3,590 256 3,846 3,627 - 3,627
Deferred Tax Liability - 4,100 4,100 - - -
Total Long Term Liabilities 107,342 4,356 111,698 127,279 - 127,279
Total Liabilities 123,741 4,880 128,621 142,932 422 143,354
CAPITAL AND RESERVES - -
Share capital 55,948 4,257 60,205 55,948 4,257 60,205
Share premium account - 317 317 - 317 317
Non-controlling interest - 9,368 9,368 - 7,660 7,660
IFRS 2 reserve — brought fwd - 193 193 - 156 156
IFRS 2 reserve — current period - 106 106 - 37 37
Profit and loss account Prior 7,391 (4,242) 3,149 (8,026) (1,503} (9,529)
P & L —current 13,234 (7,059) 6,175 15,417 (2,740) 12,677
Total Capital and Reserves 76,573 2,940 79,513 63,339 8,184 71,523

All of the Group's production, marketing and sales activibes take place in the United States Some management
costs and costs relating to the public isting on AIM are incurred in the UK

llinois River Energy LLC

IRE operates a dry mill, corn-based processing facility which produces fuel grade ethanol and two forms of
distiller's grains The ethanol plant 15 located in Rochelle, llinois where it processes over 40 milhon bushels of corn
per year The facility has a capacity to annually produce up to 115 million gallons of denatured fuel grade ethanol
and over 300,000 tons of dried distillers grains with solubles (DDGS)

GTL Resources

GTL developed the IRE project, secured the financing, managed the construction, and now manages the business
GTL Resources 15 actively developing relationships to identify ways to enhance the corn to ethanol manufactunng
process and evaluate emerging technologies to convert its standard ethanol plant into an advanced bio refining
facity

The Group's revenue 1s primarily from its 3 main customers, all of which operate in the United States of America
All 3 customers contributed more than 10% of the Group's FY 2011 total revenue amounting to $43 4 million,
$77 4 million, $1392 7 milion (FY 2010 $37 0 million, $70 3 milhion, $108 @ million) The Group's largest customers
act as brokers to the ulhimate customer
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7 OPERATING PROFIT
Group operating profit for the year 1s stated after the following

$000 3000
Company administration and management expenses 1,291 972
Depreciation 11,921 11,858
Amortization of long term deferred revenue (137) (131)
Other (Income)expenses (145) 42
Admirustrative — exceptional {1,679) (1,500)

Business interruption insurance proceeds are recorded as an exceptional credit within administrative expenses
On 5 October 2009, a fire occurred at GTU's plant during its regular maintenance shutdown, which 1impacted
approximately half of the plant’s production capacity for approximately 43 days The plant has now fully recovered
from this incident Losses incurred due to the repar and replacement of the damaged equipment, and business
interruption losses, were covered by insurance policies The Group received the final business interruption
insurance claim reimbursements of $17 milion in fiscal 2011 The aforementicned $1 7 million s reflected as
Administrative — exceptional in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income as was the imitial $1 5 mtllion

claim reimbursements recorded in fiscal 2010 The claim has been settled in full and has been closed

8. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

2011 2010
$000 $000

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor for the audit of the Group’s annual financial statements 34 31

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and its associates for other services

The audit of the Group's subsidianes, pursuant to legislation 63 54

Tax services 86 151"

All other services 87 139"

{1) Remuneration pnmanly for KPMG Plc tax, audit, and other consultancy services

Remuneration for the annual audit of the financial statements relates to PKF (UK) LLP The prior year tax and other

services are comprised of fees paid mainly to KPMG Plc
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9 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) dunng the year analysed by category,

was as follows

Group
2011 2010
Production 42 42
Administration 31 25
73 67
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows
2011 2010
Notes $000 $000
Wages and salarnes 5,092 4 846
Social securnity costs 365 357
Share-hased payments 26 106 37
Contnbutions to defined contribution plans 111 99
5,674 5,339
10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Defined pension
Salaries and Fees Taxable Benefits® plan contrbution Bonus® Total emoluments
2041 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Executive directors
Richard Ruebe'" 325 312 13 9 10 11 140 100 488 432
Martha Schiicher
(resigned 30/06/2009}) - 65 - 2 - 2 - - - 69
325 377 13 1 10 13 140 100 488 501
Non-Executive directors
Julia Henderson 79 80 - - - - - - 79 80
Michael Nobbs 39 40 - - - - - - 39 40
Graham Wickham 41 42 - - - - - - 4 42
Martha Schlicher 32 21 - - - — - - 32 21
191 183 - - - - - - 191 183
Aggregate emoluments 516 560 13 1 10 13 140 100 679 684

{1) The highest paid Director was Richard Ruebe

(2) Benefits incorporate all taxable benefits ansing from employment which pnmanly relate to pnvate medical insurance
(3) Bonus payments are made at the sole discretion of the Remuneration Committee
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The Company contributes to personal pension plans for all its employees, whereby the Company contributes a
percentage of annual salary on behalf of full-time employee’s including Executive Directors of the Company into
personal pension schemes The number of Directors for which such payments were made during the year s
as follows

2011 2010
Directors 1 2
Directors’ nights to subscribe for shares in, or debentures of, the Company are indicated below

2011 2010
Number of Numnber of
share options share options Exercise prnice Exercise penod

R Ruebe 67,782 67,782 £225 Dec 2007 — Jan 2016
R Ruebe 350,000 350,000 £0 21 Dec 2009 - Jan 2018
R Ruebe 300,000 - £0 61 Jul 2013 - Jul 2020
J Henderson 50,000 - £0 61 Jul 2013 —~ Jul 2020
M Nobbs 50,000 - £0 61 Jul 2013 = Jul 2020
11. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS

2011 2010

$000 $000
interest Income on bank deposits 3 28
Net gain on remeasurement of interest rate swaps to fair value 1,558 1,488
Finance Income 1,589 1,516
Interest expense on borrowings (7,842) (9,056)
Finance expense (7.842) (9,056)
Net finance expense (6,253) (7,540)
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12. TAXATION
Tax on profit may be analyzed as follows

2011 2010

$000 $000
Tax expensef{credit)
Current - {162)
Deferred 4,100 -

4,100 (162)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2011 2010

$000 $000
Profit before income tax 11,984 14,498
Income tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 26% (FY 2010 28%) 3,115 4,059
Effect of tax rates in foreign junisdictions 1,834 1,566
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6 15
Non-controlling interest* (706) -
Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation - (9,911}
Reversa! of previously recognised US tax credits 1,462 -
Other timing differences - (687)
Prior year return adjustments 896 (162)
Increase/utilisation of tax losses - 4 858
Recognibion of prior years valuation claims {2,507) -
Total 4,100 (162)

*IRE 15 a pass through entity for income tax purposes As such, the non-controlling interests are responsible for

Income taxes relating to their pro rata share of profit before income tax

Factors that may affect future tax charge

The company has unrecognised deferred tax losses and tax incentives of $8,901,000 (2010 $12,058,000), see

note 17
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

Land and

land Plantand Assets under
improvement equipment  construction  Group Total Company
$000 000 $000 $000 3000

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2009 7,602 179,272 1,096 187,970 -
Additions 35 1,114 542 1,691 -
Transfers - 96 (96) - -
Disposals - (83) - (83) -
At 31 March 2010 7,637 180,399 1,642 189,578 -
At 1 Apnl 2010 7,637 180,399 1,542 189,578 -
Additions 27 367 4,530 4,924 -
Transfers - 60 (60} - -
Disposals - (636) - (636) -
At 31 March 2011 7,664 180,190 6,012 193,866 -
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 Apnl 2009 191 13,343 - 13,634 -
Depreciation for the year 313 11,545 - 11,858 -
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 March 2010 504 24 888 - 25,392 -
At 1 Apnl 2010 504 24,888 - 25,392 -
Depreciation for the year 318 11,603 - 11,921 -
Disposals - {(319) - (319) -
At 31 March 2011 822 36,172 - 36,994 -
Net book value
At 1 Apnl 2009 7,411 165,929 1,096 174,436 -
At 31 March 2010 7,133 155,511 1,542 164,186 -
At 1 Apnl 2010 7,133 155,511 1,542 164,186 -
At 31 March 2011 6,842 144,018 6,012 156,872 -

Security

Borrowings are secured by the buildings, plant and equipment, and assets under construction
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
Cost 3000
At 31 March 2008 through to 31 March 2011 7,390

The goodwill relates to the investment in IRE The recoverable amount has been calculated with reference to its
value in use and based upon management cash flow forecasts The carrying amount of the investment was
determined to be lower than its recoverable amount resulting in no iImpairment The key features of this calculation

are shown below

— cash flows were projected based on actual operating results Commodity prices for ethanol, corn, and natura! gas
reflect management’s own assumptions based upon current market experience,

- the forecasts were prepared for a further five years, and

—a discount rate of 8 1% and growth rate of 2% were applied in determining the recoverable amount of the

investment

15 INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Shares in Group

undertakings $000
At 1 Apnl 2009 and 1 Apnl 2010 56,294
Capital contribution to GTL Resources USA Inc 256
At 31 March 2011 56,550

The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries

Percentage beneficial

Class

Country of

of shares Incorporationf

ownership by group held Registration
2014 2010

Ethanol Production
llhnois River Energy LLC 8713% 87 13% Ordinary USA Company
liinois River Energy Holdings LLC 87.13% 87 13% Ordinary USA Project Holding Company
Low Carbon Energy Solutions LLC 100.00% 0 00% Ordinary USA Alternative energy
GTL Resources USA Inc 100.00% 100 00% Ordmary USA  Project Holding Company
GTL Resources Overseas Investments Lid 100.00% 100 00% Ordinary UK  Project Holding Company
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16, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2011 2010
$000 5000
Financial Assets
Non current
Debt service market investments 10,384 -
Debt service bank deposits - 10,397
Contingency accounts - 7,191

10,384 17,688

Current

Restricted use bank deposits 5,500 6,167
Debt service accounts 600 600
Contingency accounts 4,036 -

10,136 6,767

The restricted use bank deposits are current cash funds drawn down under the terms of the senior debt agreement
that are to be applied to specific trade creditor balances The debt service bank deposits and market investments
must be maintained under loan covenants to ensure the capability of the Group te make minimum interest and loan
repayments The contingency deposits are earmarked for potential silo related expenses As such, these amounts
are not free to be used in the ordinary course of business, so they are not disclosed alongside ordinary cash
balances

The Group's exposure to credit, currency and interest rate risks related to other financial assets 1s disclosed In
note 27

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following tems

Group Company

At At At At

1 Apr Rate 31 Mar 1 Apr Rate 31 Mar

2010  vanance Recognition 2011 2010  vanance Recognition 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 5000 $000 $000

Deductible temporary differences 66 {5) - 61 66 (5) - 61
Tax credits 2,507 - (2,507) - - - - -
Tax losses 9,485  (645) - 8,840 9,485 (645) 8,840
12,058  (650) (2,507) 8,901 9,551 (650) - 8,901

The deductible temporary differences and tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation The above tax
losses have not been recognised as there Is no likely utiisation for these losses in the taxing junsdiction where
they were generated in the foreseeable future The $2 5 millton of tax credits as of 31 March 2010 were treated in
FY 2011 as follows $0 9 million of the tax credit was recognised as a tax asset, $1 0 million of the tax credit was
utihsed in FY 2011, and the remaining $0 6 was eliminated because it will not be utiised before it expires
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17 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Recognised deferred tax assets and labilities
Deferred tax assets and habilities are atinibutable to the following
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Assets Liabilibes
2011 2010 2011 2010
Group $000 $000 $000 $000
Property, plant and equipment - - 29,370 27,520
Pre-trading start-up costs 1,522 1,614 - -
Dervatives 116 642 - -
Deductible temporary differences 1,761 1,626 - -
Tax credits 872 3,722 - -
Other timing differences - - - 365
Tax loss carry-forwards 29,900 32,339 - -
Tax assets/lrabihities 34,171 39,943 29,370 27,885
Set off of deferred tax assets and liabilities {25,270) (27,885) (25,270) (27,885)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets (8,901} (12,058) - -
Net tax assets/llabilities - — 4,100 -
No deferred tax assets or habilities have been recognised in respect of the Company
18. INVENTORIES
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Raw matenals and consumables 4,873 2,565 - -
Work In progress 2,763 1,698 - -
Finished goods 3,108 1,146 - -
10,744 5,409 - -
Cost of inventories expensed in the income statement 180,231 135,374 - -
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Trade receivables 3,514 2,124 - -
Other receivables 47 1,307 1 24
3,931 3,431 1" 24

The Group's exposure to credit and currency nsks and imparment losses related to trade and other receivables are

disclosed in note 27
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

$000 3000 3000 3000

Bank balances 4,776 5,164 3,854 4,056
Short term deposits 2,119 3,452 2,119 3,452
Cash and cash equivalents I1n the statement of cash flows 6,895 8,616 5,973 7,508

The Group considers all htghly hquid funds with an onginal maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabihties are disclosed
In note 27

21. SHARE CAPITAL

2011 2010
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
31,988,745 Ordinary shares of 1p each 320 320
31,988,745 Deferred shares of 99p each 31,669 31,669

31,989 31,989

The Group and Company’s share capital 1s denominated in sterling and recorded at historic exchange rates at the
date of i1ssue The Group and Company's share capital in US dollars 1s $60,205,265 (2010 $60,205,265)

The total number of 1ssued ordinary shares in the Company 1s 31,988,745 ordinary shares with voting nights The
holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as may be declared from time to time and are entitied to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company The nghts of the Deferred Shares of 31,988,745 are very mited,
they do not carry voting nghts and carry no nghts to dividends and only have nghts to return of capital after very
substantial sums have first been paid to the holders of new shares
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22 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share was based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and a

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated as follows
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

2011 2010

$000 $000
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 6,175 12,677
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

$000 000
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 31,989 31,989
Issued/repurchased - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 31,989 31,989
Earning per share $019 $0 40

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share was based con prefit attnbutable to the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding after factoring in an adjustment for the effect of all dilutive share options In

GTL Resources PLC The calculation 1s as follows

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted)

$000 5000
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders {(diluted) 6,175 12,677
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2011 2010

$000 $000
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April {diluted) 31,989 31,989
Effect of share options on 1ssue 433 245
Weighted average number of ordmnary shares (diluted) 32,422 32,234
Diluted earrning per share $0.19 $0 39
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23 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and hguidity nsk, see note 27
For details on net debt, refer to note 28

2011 2010
$000 $000
Non current habihties
Senior secured bank loans 73,752 93,752
Junior secured loan — IFA 30,000 30,000

103,752 123,752

Current liabilities

Current portion of secured bank loans 7,039 7,039
7,039 7,039
Total loans and borrowings 110,791 130,791

Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows

Year of 2011 2010

Currency  Nominal interest rate maturity $000 $000

Senior secured loan — West LB USD LIBOR + 3 50% 2015 80,791 100,791
Junior secured loan — IFA usD Fixed 8 50% 2020 30,000 30,000
Total interest-bearing habilities 110,791 130,791

The senior bank loan and the subordinated junior loan are secured by all assets of the IRE subsidiary The carrying
value as of 31 March 2011 of the IRE net assets consolidated within these Group accounts 15 $156,612,000
(31 March 2010 $164,186,000)

The senior debt outstanding as of 31 March 2011 was $80,791,000 (31 March 2010 $100,791,0600) Minimum
principal payments are required quarterly at 1 5% of the inihal term loan balance Additional repayments are due
under terms of the loan dependent upon prcfitability The facility requires repayment over a six year loan term

The $14,000,000 working capital loan facility was not utilised n fiscal 2011 or fiscal 2010

The junior debt outstanding as of 31 March 2010 was $30,000,000 (31 March 2010 $30,000,000) Repayment of
the principal 15 scheduled after the senior debt noted above is repaid Interest on the junior debt 1s payable dunng
the pernod that the senior debt exists On repayment or renegotiation of the senior debt, the principal of the junior
debt must then be repaid over the subsequent four-year period
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24. DEFERRED GRANT REVENUE

2011 2010
$000 $000
Non current 3,846 3,527
3,846 3,527
Current 134 131
134 131

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
$000 S000 3000 3000
Trade payables 6,988 4,643 - -
Other trade payables 30 5 7 2
Non-trade payables and other accrued expenses 1,800 1,732 154 86
Accrued interest expense 600 634 - -
9,418 7,014 161 88

The Group’s exposure to currency and hquidity nsk related to trade and other payables i1s disclosed in note 27

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY
The Group has three active Executive Share Option Schemes

The 2005 Approved Executive Share Option Scheme — adopted 31 August 2005 Options under this scheme are

granted at the discretion of a committee of the Board of the Company to eligible employees

The 2005 Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme — adopted on 31 August 2005 The scheme has rules
substantially the same as for the Approved Scheme except that, in addition, opttons rmay be granted to companies
who provide the services of an employee or Director to the Group

The 2006 Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme — adopted on 1 December 2006 and amended on
30 September 2008 The scheme rules are substantially the same as that of the 2005 scheme other than specific

restrictions in respect of eligibility and leavers

Share options, granted to employees, that existed at 31 March were as follows

2011
Number of 2010
share Number of Exercise

Date of grant options share options price £ Exercise penod
1 Dec, 2006 22,594 22,594 225 Dec 2007 — Jan 2016
1 Dec, 2006 22,594 22,594 225 Dec 2008 — Jan 2016
1 Dec, 2006 22,594 22,594 225 Dec 2009 - Jan 2016
9 Dec, 2008 500,000 600,000 021 Dec 2011 - Jan 2018
6 Jul, 2010 33,333 - 061 Jul 2011 = Jul 2020
6 Jul, 2010 33,333 - 061 Jul 2012 — Jul 2020
6 Jul, 2010 533,334 - 0 61 Jul 2013 -~ Jul 2020

1,167,782 667,782
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Under the scheme rules, options are exercisable at a price equal to the average guoted market price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant All options are toc be settled by physical delivery of shares The vesting
penod 1s across the first three years from the date the options are granted If the option remains unexercised after
ten years from the date it was granted, they expire Options are forfeited If the employee leaves the Group before
the options vest or does not exercise fully vested options within one year of leaving the Group

The number and weighted average exercise prices of options in 1ssue are as follows

2011 2010

Number Weighted Number Weighted

of share average of share average

options share price oplions share price

Outstanding at beginning of year 667,782 £0.42 967,782 £053
Lapsed durning the year {100,000) £0.21 (300,000) £078
Granted during the year 600,000 £0.61 - £000
Outstanding at end of year 1,167,782 £0.53 667,782 £042
Exercisable at end of year 67,782 £2.25 67,782 £225

The options outstanding at 31 March 2011 had exercise prnices ranging from £0 21 to £2 25 and the weighted
average remaining contractual life of these options were eight years

The farr value of services received tn return for share options granted are measured by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted The share options were valued internally using a Black-Scholes model as there 1s no

dividend yield The key inputs to the model were

Share options granted on 1 December 2006

1 year vest 2 year vest 3 year vest

Fair value at measurement date
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

£1 11 £105 £0 98
£225 £2 25 £225
65 3% 65 3% 65 3%

4 78% 4 85% 4 69%

Share options granted on 9 December 2008

1 year vest 2 year vest 3 year vest

Farr value ai measurement date
Exercise price

Expected volatiity

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

£009 £009 £0 09
£021 £0 21 £0 21
55 5% 55 5% 55 5%

310% 3 10% 3 10%

Share ophions granted on 6 July 2010

1 year vest 2 year vest 3 year vest
Fair value at measurement date £0 40 £0 38 £0 36
Exercise price £0 61 £061 £061
Expected volatility 87% 87% 87%
Expected dividends - - -
Risk-free interest rate 141% 141% 141%
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Employee expenses

2011 2010

$000 $000

Share options granted on 1 December 2006 - 8
Share options granted on 9 December 2008 18 29
Share options granted on 6 July 2010 88 -
106 37

Expected volatility assumptions were determined by reference to the daily share price movements from

1 September 2005 to the date of granting the options Historic data prior to this date 1s not considered appropnate
given the significant changes to the Group including the placing of a significant number of shares and changes in
the Group's activities

Share options are granted under a service condition and subject to either no performance conditions or a
‘non-market based' performance condition Such condiions are not taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received There are no market conditions associated with the share options granted

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit risk

Exposure to credit nsk

The group invests some of s surplus funds in high qualty hquid market instruments Such investments have a
maturity no greater than three months or are backed by the US government To reduce the nsk of counterparty
default, the Group deposits the rest of its surplus funds in approved high quality banks

Customers are assessed for credit worthiness and, where appropnate, the Group obtains secunty for its exposure
to the nisk of default
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The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit

rsk at the reporting date was

Group Company
Carrying amount Carrying amount
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets 16 20,520 24 355
Trade and receivables 19 3,931 3,431 11 24
Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,895 8,616 5,973 7,508
31,346 36,402 5,984 7,532

The maximum exposure to credit sk for loans and receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was

Group Company
Carrying amount Carrying amount
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
United Kingdom 1 24 11 24
United States 3,920 3,407 - -
3,931 3,431 11 24

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was
Group Company
Carrying amount Carrying amount
201 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Ethanocl and distillers grains customers 3,428 2,114 - -
Other recewvables 503 1,317 24 24
3,931 3,431 24 24

The Group's three most significant customers account for trade recewvables of $1,544,000, $1,620,000 and

$264,000 at 31 March 2011 (31 March 2010 $1,023,000, $457,000 and $634,000)

Impairment losses
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was

Group Company

Gross Gross

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Not past due 3,428 2,114 - -

No defaults have been expenenced and the Group believes that no impairment allowance 1S necessary n respect

of trade receivables All outstanding trade receivables at year-end have been paid in full
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Liquidity risk — Group

The following are the contractual matunties of financial irabilities and exclude the impact of netting agreements

Carrying Contractual 6 months More than
amount cash flows or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
31 March 2011 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Secured loans 110,791 (110,791} (3,519) (3,519) (7,038) (686,715} (30,000}
Trade and other payables‘ 7,018 (7,018)  (7,018) - - - -
Derivative financial habilities
Interest rate swaps® 332 (332) (332) - - - -
118,141 (118,141} {10,869) (3,519} (7,038) (66,715} (30,000)
Carrying  Contractual 6 months More than
amount cash flows orless 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
31 March 2010 $000 $000 %000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Secured loans 130,791 (130,791) (3,519) (3,519) (7,038) (21,114) (95,601)
Trade and other payables‘" 4,648 (4,648)  (4,648) - - - -
Derivative financial habilities
Interest rate swaps® 1,891 (1,891) (756) (756) (378) -

137,330 (137.330) (8,923) (4,275) (7,416) (21,114) (95,601)

(1) Excludes denvatives (shown separately)
(2) Interest rate swaps are classified as financial labilibes at fair value through profit and loss

Interest rate swaps fair value

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) or identical assets or habihties in active markets that the entity has the ability to
access as of the measurement date

Level 2 Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabihities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated
by observable market data

Level 3 Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own assumptions about the assumptions that
market participants would use In pricing an asset or lability

The increase (decrease) In the fair value of interest rate swap agreements 1s determined under Level 2 inputs

31 Mar 2011 Level 1 Levei 2 Leve! 3
Interest rate swaps at fair value through profit or loss (332) (332)
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Liquidity risk — Company

Carrying and
contractual values

2011 2010
$000 $000

Trade and other payables 161 88

The contractual matunties of Company financial habiltties are all six months or less

Currency risk — Group and Company

Exposure to currency risk

The exposures to sterling foreign currency risk for both the Group and Company were as follows based on
notional amounts

2011 2010

$000 $000

Trade and other receivables 21 40
Financial assets 55 55
Trade and other payables (161) (88)
Gross balance sheet exposure (85) 7
Estimated forecast purchases (806) (557)
Gross exposure (806) (557)

A 1% change n the foreign exchange rate would result in a fluctuation of approximately $630 in the gross balance
sheet exposure and a fluctuation of approximately $5,000 in gross exposure for profit and loss items

The following exchange rates appled during the year

Average rate 31st March spot rate

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Dollars GBP 1.5555 15963 16208 156072
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Interest rate risk — Group
Profile
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-beanng financial instruments (post-swap) was

Carrying amount

2011 2010
$000 $000
Fixed rate instruments
Junior secured loan {30,000} (30,000)
Swap element of senior secured loan {39,900) (47,000)

(69,900) (77,000)

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 27,415 32,971

Vanable element of senior secured loan {40,891) (53,791)

(13,476)  (20,820)

(a) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The fixed rate instruments include the junior debt of $30,000,000, and the interest rate swap outlined 1n note 5
The swap 1s not designated as a hedging instrument so 1s accounted for at far value through profit or loss
Achange of 100 basis points in interest rates will increase or decrease the fair value of the instrument by
$76,500 (2010 $465,250)

{b) Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
The vanable element of the senior loan 1s inked to LIBOR and a 1% movement in the LIBOR rate would result in a
fluctuation of $408,810 (2010 $537,910)

{c) Interest rates used for determining fair value of interest rate swaps
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the farr value determined
by market quotes at balance sheet dates

Commodity price risk

The Group's results are substantially dependent upon commodity prices, especially prices for corn, natural gas,
ethanol and distillers grains As a resuit of the volatility of the prices for these items, the Group results may fluctuate
substantially Although the Group may attempt to offset a portion of the effects of fluctuations in prices by entenng
supply agreements for ethanol and disthllers grains or purchase cormn, natural gas or other items, the amount and
duration of these nsk mitigation activites may vary substantially over ime

The Group's gross margin depends pnncipally upon the spread between corn cost price and ethanol and distillers
grains sales price Natural gas i1s the next single greatest cost after corn
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A one-cent movement in the Groups' commodity margin at full capacity results in a $1 15 million change in profit

before tax

Classes and fair value of financial instruments

2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Far
Value Value Value Value
$000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets
Trade receivables 3,931 3,831 3.431 3,431
Other financial assets 20,520 20,520 24,355 24,355
Cash and cash equivalents 6,895 6,895 8616 8,616

Financial liabilities

Non-current borrowings
Current borrowings

Trade and cther payables
Interest rate swaps

103,752 103,752 123,752 123,752

7,038 7,039 7,039 7,039
9,418 9,418 7,014 7,014
332 332 1,891 1,891

It s the Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of trade receivables and trade payables approximates their

fair value

54




GTL RESOURCES PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2011

Financial
assets/ Liabilities
(habihttes)  at fair value
measured at through
Loans and amortised profit or
receivables cost loss
31 March 2011 $000 $000 $000
Trade receivables 3,931 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,895 - -
Non-current borrowings - (103,752) -
Current borrowings - - -
Current portion of non-current borrowings - (7,039) -
Interest rate swaps - - (332)
Other financial assets 10,136 10,384 -
Trade and other payables - {9,418) -
Financial
assets/ Liabilities
(habihties) at farr value
measured thraough
Loans and  at amortised profit or
recevables cost loss
31 March 2010 $000 $000 $000
Trade recewvables 3,431 - —
Cash and cash equivalents 8,616 - -
Non-current borrowings - {123,752) -
Current borrowings - - -
Current portion of non-current borrowings - (7,039) -
Interest rate swaps - - (1,891)
Other financial assets 24,355 - -
Trade and other payables - (7,014} -

The Company's classes of financial assets as of 31 March 2011 are cash and cash equivalents of $5,973,000
(31 March 2010 $7,508,000) and amounts owed by Group undertakings of $2,784,000 (31 March 2010
$2,020,000} It1s the Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of these financial assets 1s also therr farr value
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28 NET DEBT

The Group's objectives when managing debt are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide benefits and value for shareholders and other stakeholders One of the subsidianes
of the Company holds restricted use, debt service and contingency bank deposits The restricted use bank deposits
are current cash funds drawn down under the terms of the senior debt agreement that are to be applied to specific
trade creditor balances The debt service bank deposits must be maintained under loan covenants to guarantee the
capability of IRE to make mimimum interest and loan repayments IRE mantains debt service bank deposits along
with restricted cash deposits that effectively reduce total debt

Net debt was as follows

2011 2010
Mote $000 $000
Loans and borrowings
Non-current habilities 23 103,752 123,752
Current hiabiities 23 7,039 7.039
Total loans and borrowings 110,791 130,791
Less Other financial assets — Non-current 186 10,384 17,588
Other financial assets — Current 16 10,136 6,767
Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,895 8,616
Net debt 83,376 97,820
29. OPERATING LEASES
Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
2011 2010
$000 $000
Less than one year
— Land and bullings 61 26
— Other 247 -
Between one and five years
— Land and builings 48 -
— Other 32 418
388 444

Other non-cancellable operating leases relate to 46 rails cars 31 rail cars have less than one year left on their
lease which will be expinng on 30 September 2011 30 of those 31 rail cars are subleased through the end of their
lease term, 30 September 2011, and will generate $114,000 of sublease tncome
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30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are two major outstanding purchase commitments as of 31 March 2011 One relates to the milling building
and steel bin construction project and the other relates to the combined heat and power project At 31 March 2011,
the amounts involved are $920,655 and $1,247,078, respectively (31 March 2010 $nil)

31. RELATED PARTIES
Parent and ultimate controlling party
The uttimate controlling parties of the Group are the Company shareholders

Transactions with key management personnel
In addition to ther salanes, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to directors and executive officers, and
contnbutes to personal defined contribution pension plans on their behalf as outlined in note 10

Executive officers also participate in the Group's share option programme (see note 26) Key management
personnel compensation 1 outlined in note 10

Directors of the Company control less than 1% of the voting shares of the Company

32. CONTINGENCIES

On April 28 2009, GTL's majority owned subsidiary, IRE, filed a complaint, Case No 09L 15, in the Circuit Court of
the Fifteenth Judicial Circult, Ogle County, llinois against Fagen, Inc Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and
GCube Insurance Services, Inc to preserve and protect IRE’s legal nghts under the Design-Build Agreement with
Fagen for i1ssues relating to a damaged corn silo and the February 2009 shutdown of IRE’s ethanol plant and the
insurance policy with GCube concerning business interruption IRE has taken these actions to facilitate the needed
repairs to the corn stlo and to protect and preserve IRE's legal nghts, as well as the value of IRE’s collateral These
actions are consistent with IRE's nghts and obligations under the Senior Credit Agreement the Loan Agreement
IRE has with Wells Fargo, the Design-Builld Agreement, GCube policy, and other related documents to this matter
During FY 2011, legal proceedings have progressed with the parties at 1ssue, wnitten fact discovery has nearly
concluded, and non-expert fact depositions are commencing A trial date has not yet been set and there have been
no settlements or dismissals
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Company secretary

Registered office

Registered number

Auditors

Bankers

Registrars

Solicitors

Nominated advisors and brokers

Website address

Ovalsec Limited

2 Temple Back East

Temple Quay

Bristol BS1 6EG or DX 7818 Bristol

107 Cheapside
London EC2V 6DN
Tel 01642 794000

02811366

PKF (UK) LLP
Regent House
Clinton Avenue
Nottingham NG5 1AZ

Yorkshire Bank Plc

Tees Valley Area Business Centre
Teesdale South

Stockton on Tees TS 17 6SE

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A
Multinational Corporate Group
270 Park Avenue, Floor 41
New York, NY

HSBC Bank plc
8§ Canada Square
London EC14 5HQ

Computershare Services Plc
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

Osbome Clarke

2 Temple Back East

Temple Quay

Bristol BS1 6EG or DX 7818 Bristol

Cenkos
6 7 8 Tokenhouse Yard
London EC2R 7AS

www gtlresources com
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